

Filed: 2016-04-06 Board Secretary: CB



RatingsDirect

Fortis Inc.

Primary Credit Analyst:

Stephen R Goltz, Toronto (416) 507-2592; stephen.goltz@standardandpoors.com

Secondary Contact:

Andrew Ng, Toronto (416) 507-2545; andrew.ng@standardandpoors.com

Table Of Contents

Rationale

Outlook

Standard & Poor's Base-Case Scenario

Company Description

Business Risk

Financial Risk

Liquidity

Other Modifiers

Ratings Score Snapshot

Reconciliation

Related Criteria And Research

Fortis Inc.

Highly leveraged Minimal	Pinancial Risk: SKUNTFOANT	Business Risk: EXCELLENT Vulnerable Excellent
Anchar Modifiers Group/Govt		
	A-/Stable/	Sound diverse carrioanos

Rationale

			9
Contract of	Agent the Area of	THE PERSON NOT THE PERSON NAMED IN	
	A 25. 1		THE ROLL
2 12		• 10	1 医型
The state of the s	1 3 5 70	1 2 2 2 3 3	8 E
Carlo State	125 0	TOWE !	F 72
	W	× 1 0	<u>,</u>
	. F . H	5.0	3 3
		0.00	\$ (D
0	O's		CO .
THE PARTY	3 A		\$ (A)
TO.	- O		-
and the second	- 'C	O D	20
- O	H O	2	10
	R. S.	M 04.00	-
A CONTRACTOR	0	A Comment	
TO:	00	海域国际	1354
3460	C . C	CT B	PAGE 1
00	200	0 0 0	202
	A		The state of
	0 0	0 2 S	THE REAL PROPERTY.
1.50	O TO	20. 30	100000
	1	9 8 %	Ser II
Mark Hall	7 O	- A	
12.00	H.	Andrew to the o	- 000
60	2		Samo
	- CO	E S.	
The same of the	(2) T		12.2
and the second	W . CA	10 - 10 P	
2		· Oto	100
1115	110 11	121	B355
	and the second	E	SAFE TO
Carlo Colonia	0	- C-3	E115
11.	W. 7. 32	3 2	EUR
CALL POLICY OF			20
127 23 120	100	10 . O .	The same
1000			
1 1 AND 1 AN	David.	D. S	E01500
100000000	00	D	1000
112 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12		CO CO CO	STATE OF THE PARTY.
100	2 S. C.	N 0	
3	第一节企业	8	STORES!
17.44 CHES	Section.		10.0
120 110000	Grant Control	m -	108
	N		1550
12.00	. 30%		
	1	- A-1	100
Destar Tale	1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1
さる さいからます	SALAHAMAN ME	Strait Shanester smanner and or	
3 3 38 3	- Water 6	Lit Tig Blown	
14.0			173
			131
		 	Fin
	B	B B S	Fina
	nex		Finan
	next	Stabi High metr	Financ
	next s	• Stable • Highly metric	Financia
	next se	Stable toHighly metrics	Financial
	next sev	Stable re Highly le métrics a	Financial)
	next sevel	Stable reg Highly lev metrics as	Financial R
	next severe	Stable regu Highly Jeve metrics as	Financial Ris
	next several	Stable regular Highly lever metrics as a	Financial Risl
	next several y	Stable regulat Highly leveral metrics as arr	Financial Risk
	next several ye	Stable regulate Highly leverage metrics as a res	Financial Risk
	next several yea	Stable regulated Highly leverages metrics as a resu	Financial Risk
	next several years	 Stable regulated c Highly leveraged in metrics as a result 	Financial Risk
	next several years	Stable regulated on Highly leveraged in metrics as a result.	Financial Risk
	next several years	Stable regulated cas Highly leveraged an metrics as a result of	Financial Risk
	next several years	Stable regulated cash Highly leveraged and metrics as a result of	Financial Risk
	next several years	 Stable regulated cash f Highly leveraged and o metrics as a result of la 	Financial Risk
	next several years	Stable regulated cash fix Highly leveraged and do metrics as a result of lan	Financial Risk
	next several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downelffice as a result of large 	Financial Risk
	noxt several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and down metrics as a result of large.	Financial Risk
	noxi several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and down metrics as a result of large o 	Financial Risk
	noxt several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downw metrics as a result of large ca	Financial Risk
	noxi several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downwa metrics as a result of large cap 	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward metrics as a result of large capit	Financial Risk
	pext several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward metrics as a result of large capita 	Financial Risk
	next several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward p metrics as a result of large capital 	Financial Risk
	next several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward prometries as a result of large capital p 	Financial Risk
	hext several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward premetrics as a result of large capital premetrics. 	Financial Risk
	hext several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward press metrics as a result of large capital pros 	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressumetrics as a result of large capital progr	Financial Risk
	hext several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressur metrics as a result of large capital progra 	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure metrics as a result of large capital program	Financial Risk
	hext several years	 Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure of metrics as arresult of large capital program. 	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on metrics as a result of large capital programs.	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on methods as arresult of large capital programs or	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on a metrics as a result of large capital programs ov	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on ore metrics as arresult of large capital programs over	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on cred metrics as a result of large capital programs over	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on credit methods as arresult of large capital programs over the control of the capital programs.	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on credit metrics as a result of large capital programs over the	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on credit metrics as arresult of large capital programs over the	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly Jeveraged and downward pressure on credit metrics as a result of large capital programs over the	Financial Risk
	hext several years	Stable regulated cash flow Highly leveraged and downward pressure on credit metrics as arresult of large capital programs over the	Financial Risk

Outlook

imancial stability of Forths inc.'s operating companies. We expect these operating companies to continue generating stable and predictable cash flow, alkey credit strangth

Downside scenario The stable outlook reflects Standard & Poors Rain ervices, assessment of the underlying operational and

Downside scenario

We could lower the ratings on Fortis if the company's adjusted funds from operations (AJFO)-to-defit were to fall and stay below 9%. This could happen if Fortis were to employ more leverage or if its larger subsidiants efrogulated major financial or operational difficulties of adverse regulatory decisions. Investment in assets with materially higher regulatory risks or cash flow variability could also lead to a downgrade.

Upside scenario

A positive outlook or upgrade during our two-year outlook hor credit metrics, specifically AFFO-to-debt above 14%.

Standard & Poor's Base-Case Scenario

Assumptions	Key Metrics
Portis will continue to focus on regulated business It will not experience any adverse material regulatory decisions The company will not acquire regulated assets with materially higher regulatory risk resulting in loss of	2014A 2015E 2016E AFFO7delic 10.4% 10.12% 10%-12% Distr/BBITDA 26.4% 5x-6x 5x-6x AFFO-Adjusted funds from operations: A-Actual.
access to the low-volatility table. The Waneta expansion project will contribute about C\$23 million in annual earnings.	B-Estimate

Company Description

Fortis is a leader in the North American electric and gas utility business, with total assets of more than C\$26 billion and fiscal 2014 revenue of C\$5.4 billion. Its regulated utilities account for approximately 94% of total assets and serve more than 3 million customers across Canada, the U.S., and the Caribbean. Fortis owns unregulated hydroelectric generation assets in Canada, Belize, and Upstate New York.

Business Risk

Fortis' business risk profile is "excellent". In our view, the company continues to benefit from its stable, low-risk, and regulated utility portfolio. Regulation typically involves a cost-of-service methodology that provides an allowed regulated rate of return. The utilities have relatively low levels of volume risk exposure, further reducing cash flow volatility. Fortis' regulated subsidiaries have monopolies as service providers in their respective service areas. They are exposed to limited commodity input price risk as electricity input cost remains a pass-through in many of the company's service territories and are relatively insulated from typical market forces, which we view as a credit strength.

In our view, another key credit strength is the regulatory, geographic, and market diversification of the subsidiaries and their cash flows. Before the acquisition of Central Hudson Gas and Electric Corp. (CHGE) and UniSource Energy Services (UNS), Canadian operations accounted for about 84% of Fortis' operating income, most of which was in British Columbia, making up about 50% of the company's total cash flows. With the acquisition of CHGE and UNS, we now expect U.S. operations to account for approximately 37% of Fortis' operating income and British Columbia accounting for about 30% of total cash flows, reducing the company's exposure in a single jurisdiction.

The diversification effect partially offsets the impact of Fortis' exposure to weaker business risk profiles in some of its subsidiaries such as Tucson Electric Power Co. (TEP), a UNS subsidiary; and Fortis Turks and Caicos Inc. (FTCI), which have a "strong" and "satisfactory" business risk profile, respectively. However, we believe this will only

marginally weaken Fortis' overall business risk profile.

The unregulated businesses make up a small part of Fortis' overall cash flows, at approximately 6%. The size and quality of these cash flows will improve with the Waneta project's completion. This project has limited hydrology and price risk, no dispatch risk, and strong counterparties in British Columbia Hydro & Power Authority and Fortis BC. In addition, Fortis has announced it is divesting its noncore real-estate business and will continue focusing on the regulated business.

S&P Base-Case Operating Scenario

- · Fortis will continue to focus on regulated business
- Its subsidiaries will continue to earn close to its allowed return on equity and will not experience any adverse material regulatory decisions.
- The company will not acquire assets with a materially higher regulatory risk, resulting in the loss of access to the low-volatility cash flow table

Peer comparison

Table 1

Fortis Inc Peer Comparison				
Industry Sector: Electric Utility				
	Fortis Inc.	Hydro One Inc.	CU Inc.	ATCO Ltd.
Rating as of April 30, 2015	A-/Stable/-	A/Stable/A-1	A/Stable/A-1	A/Stable/-
		Average of past th	ree fiscal year	8-
(Mil. C\$)				
Revenues ,	4,367.3	6,116.7	2,043.3	4,425.0
EBITDA	1,502.8	2,077.8	1,017.3	1,769.2
Funds from operations (FFO)	980.7	1,421.7	723.7	1,253.3
Net income from continuing operations	375.3	765.7	369.7	404.3
Cash flow from operations	887.4	1,232.4	671.3	1,198.3
Capital expenditures	1,206.7	1,339.3	1,792.0	2,187.3
Free operating cash flow	(319.3)	(107.0)	(1,120.7)	(989.0)
Discretionary cash flow	(537.9)	(389.6)	(1,130.6)	(1,195.5)
Cash and short-term investments	38.0	71.7	16,9	154.6
Debt	10,227.1	11,123.5	5,696.5	7,301.5
Equity	6,273.2	7,235.8	3,619.0	5,098.7
Adjusted ratios				
EBITDA margin (%)	34.4	34.0	49.8	40.0
Return on capital (%)	5.9	7.6	7.7	9.8
EBITDA interest coverage (x)	3.0	3.6	3.5	4.3
FFO cash interest coverage (x)	3.3	4.7	3.7	5.2
Debt/EBITDA (x)	6.8	5.4	5.6	4.1
FFO/debt (%)	9.6	12.8	12.7	17.2

Table 1

Fortis Inc Peer Comparison (cont[)		111 1	
Cash flow from operations/debt (%)	8.7	11.1	11.8	16.4
Free operating cash flow/debt (%)	(3.1)	(1.0)	(19.7)	(13.5)
Discretionary cash flow/debt (%)	(5.3)	(3.5)	(19.8)	(16.4)

Financial Risk

We expect Fortis' cash flows from the regulated utilities to remain very stable, a factor we believe is a key credit strength that offsets the company's high leverage. Regulated utility cash flow is primarily composed of a return of capital (depreciation) and a return on capital, both of which continue to experience limited volatility. Consolidated leverage is a function of the underlying utilities' regulatory capital structure that generally follows levels allowed by regulation. We have assumed that growth in rate base leads to corresponding growth in cash flow.

Due to the business' nature, Fortis needs capital investments to maintain service reliability and accommodate growth. This results in downward pressure on the company's credit metrics. We forecast AFFO-to-total debt of 10%-12% from 2015-2017, which is consistent with our "significant" financial risk assessment.

S&P Base-Case Cash Flow And Capital Structure Scenario

- The Waneta project starts as planned in second-quarter 2015
- . Consolidated capital expenditures of C\$1.9 billion-C\$2.2 billion in 2015 and C\$1.6 billion-C\$1.8 billion in 2016
- Dividend payments of approximately C\$460 million in 2015
- AFFO-to-debt of 10%-12% from 2015-2017

Financial summary

Fortis Inc. -- Financial Summary

Table 2

Industry Sector: Electric Utility							
(2)	-Fiscal year ended Dec. 31—						
(Mil. C\$)	2014	2013	2012	2011	2010		
Rating history	A-/Stable/	A-/Negative/-	A-/Stable/-	A-/Stable/	A-/Stable/-		
Revenues	5,401.0	4,047.0	3,654.0	3,738.0	3,664.0		
EBITDA	1,760.5	1,432.5	1,315.5	1,249.5	1,188.0		
Funds from operations (FFO)	1,116.4	960.1	865.7	765.0	733.7		
Net income from continuing operations	374.0	390.0	362.0	357.0	330.0		
Cash flow from operations	919.4	828.6	914.2	852.0	708.2		
Capital expenditures	1,560.0	1,058.0	1,002.0	1,019.0	947.0		
Free operating cash flow	(640.6)	(229.4)	(87.8)	(167.0)	(238.8)		
Dividends paid	235.0	219.5	201.5	183.0	224.5		
Discretionary cash flow	(875.6)	(448.9)	(289.3)	(350.0)	(463.3)		
Debt	13,727.1	9,204.1	7,750.0	7,616.6	6,809.9		

Table 2

Fortis Inc Financial Summary (con	it_)		- 1 88500	A DAW WAY MADE	
Preferred stock	910.0	614.5	554.0	456.0	456.0
Equity	8,202.0	5,761.5	4,856.0	4,487.0	3,728.5
Debt and equity	21,929.1	14,965.6	12,606.0	12,103.6	10,538.4
Adjusted ratios					
EBITDA margin (%)	32.6	35,4	36.0	33.4	32.4
EBITDA interest coverage (x)	2.8	3.2	3,2	3.0	3.1
FFO cash interest coverage (x)	3.2	3.4	3.4	3.3	3,1
Debt/SBITDA (x)	7.8	6.4	5.9	6.1	5.7
FFO/debt (%)	8.1	10.4	11.2	10.0	10.8
Cash flow from operations/debt (%)	6.7	9.0	11.8	11.2	10.4
Free operating cash flow/debt (%)	(4.7)	(2.5)	(1,1)	(2.2)	(3.5)
Discretionary cash flow/debt (%)	(6.4)	(4.9)	(3.7)	(4.6)	(6.8)
Net cash flow/capex (%)	56.5	70.0	66.3	57.1	53.8
Return on capital (%)	5.5	6.1	6.4	6.9	7.2
Return on common equity (%)	4.7	6.9	7.4	7.8	7.9
Common dividend payout ratio (unadjusted; %)	96.5	78.4	73,3	69.8	85.6

Liquidity

Fortis's liquidity is "adequate." At the holding company level, liquidity sources are likely to exceed uses by more than 1.1x, even in the event of a 10% decline in EBITDA. In our view, the company has sound relationships with its banks and generally satisfactory standing in credit markets.

Principal Liquidity Sources Principal Liquidity Uses Capital expenditures of C\$1.9 billion-C\$2.2 billion in Cash and cash equivalent of about C\$230 million in 2015 Punused committed revolving credit facilities of about C\$2.2 billion as of Dec. 31, 2014 Principal Liquidity Uses Capital expenditures of C\$1.9 billion-C\$2.2 billion in 2015 Debt maturities of about C\$500 million in 2015 Dividends of about C\$460 million in 2015

Debt maturities

Table 3

Year	(Mil. C\$)
2015	505
2016	747
2017	103
2018	741
2019	201
Thereafter	8,204

Other Modifiers

None of the modifiers have any impact on the rating.

Ratings Score Snapshot

Corporate Credit Rating

A-/Stable/--

Business risk: Excellent

Country risk: Very low

Industry risk: Very low

Competitive position: Excellent

Financial risk: Significant

Cash flow/Leverage: Significant

Anchor: a-

Modifiers

- Diversification/Portfolio effect: Neutral (no impact)
- Capital structure: Neutral (no impact)
- Financial policy: Neutral (no impact)
- Liquidity: Adequate (no impact)
- Management and governance: Satisfactory (no impact)
- Comparable rating analysis: Neutral (no impact)

Stand-alone credit profile: a-

Reconciliation

Table 4

Fortis Inc. reported amounts				_F	iscal year er	ded Dec. 3	l, 2014—			
	Debt	Shareholders' equity	Revenues	EBITDA	Operating income	Interest expense	EBITDA	Cash flow from operations	Dividends paid	Capital expenditures
Reported	11,534.0	8,691.0	5,401.0	1,711.0	1,023.0	547.0	1,711.0	982.0	266.0	1,587.0
Standard & Poor's	adjustmen	its								
Interest expense (reported)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	(547.0)	N/A	N/A	N/A
Interest income (reported)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	13.0	N/A	N/A	N/A

Table 4

Reconciliation O	f Fortis Inc	. Reported	l Amounts	With Sta	ndard & l	Poor's Ac	ljusted Am	ounts (Mil	. C\$) (con	t.)
Current tax expense (reported)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	(43.0)	N/A	N/A	N/A
Operating leases	85.8	N/A	N/A	8.5	3.9	3.9	4.6	4.6	N/A	N/4
Intermediate hybrids reported as equity	910.0	(910.0)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	(31.0)	(31.0)	N/A
Postretirement benefit obligations/deferred compensation	566.6	N/A	N/A	38.0	38.0	40.0	1.7	(9.3)	N/A	N/A
Surplus cash	(172.5)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Capitalized interest	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	27.0	(27.0)	(27.0)	N/A	(27.0
Share-based compensation expense	N/A	N/A	N/A	3.0	N/A	N/A	3.0	N/A	N/A	N/A
Asset retirement obligations	675.2	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/
Non-operating income (expense)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	25.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N//
Noncontrolling interest/minority interest	N/A	421.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	. N/J
Debt accrued interest not included in reported debt	128.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/I
Total adjustments	2,193.1	(489.0)	0.0	49.5	66.9	70.9	(594.6)	(62.6)	(31.0)	(27.0
Standard & Poor's adjusted amounts	Debt	Equity	Revenues	EBITDA	EBIT	Interest	Funds from operations	Cash flow from operations	Dividends paid	Capita expenditare
Adjusted	13,727.1	8,202.0	5,401.0	1,760.5	1,089.9	617.9	1,116.4	919.4	235.0	1,560.

N/A-Not applicable.

Related Criteria And Research

Related Criteria

- Methodology And Assumptions: Liquidity Descriptors For Global Corporate Issuers, Dec. 16, 2014
- Corporate Methodology, Nov. 19, 2013
- Corporate Methodology: Ratios And Adjustments, Nov. 19, 2013
- Group Rating Methodology, Nov. 19, 2013
- Key Credit Factors For The Regulated Utilities Industry, Nov. 19, 2013
- Methodology: Management And Governance Credit Factors For Corporate Entities And Insurers, Nov. 13, 2012
- Hybrid Capital Handbook: September 2008 Edition, Sept. 15, 2008
- 2008 Corporate Criteria: Rating Each Issue, April 15, 2008

			Pinancial !	Risk Profile		
Business Risk Profile	Minimal	Modest	Intermediate	- Significant	Aggressive	Highly leveraged
Lan-Dirac	aaa/ea+	aa.	a+/a		bbb	bbb-/bb+
Strong	aa/aa-	a+/a	a-/bbb+	bbb	bb+	bb
Setisfactory	2/2-	bbb+	bbb/bbb-	bbb-/bb+	bb	b+
Pair .	bbb/bbb-	bbb-	bb+	bb	bb-	· b
Weak	bb+	bb+	bb	bb-	b+	b/b-
Vulnerable	bb-	bb-	bib-/b+	b+	b	b-

Ratings Detail (As Of April 30, 2015)	- White College Wilde			UL DU SUNA CAUSES
ortis Inc			47 7 7 7 12	on and the
Corporate Credit Rating	35 6 7		table/_	
reference Stock				
Canada National Scale Preferred Share	11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	- A.	Property of the	* 1 * 1 * 1
reference Stock	and the second	BBB		a to the state of
referred Stock	// 1 (1) [4] [4] [4]			Analy Mary
Canada National Scale Preferred Share	or the second	P2		16. 11. 17. 14.
Preferred Stock		BBB		不是有一个,只是一个
Senior Unisecuted				
Corporate Credit Ratings History				
8-Oct-2014	Million Albert	A-/S	table/_	
18-Dec-2013		A-/N	legatiye/	
3-May-2012		A-7s	table/=	
22-Feb-2012		A-78	Vatch Neg/+	
Related Entities		3.1000000000000000000000000000000000000		
Caribbean Utilities Co. Ltd. 💆 🤞 🛌				300 to
ssuer Credit Rating		AL/S	table/-	
Senior Unsecured		Α.		·
FortisAlberta Inc.				
ssher Credit Rating		A./s	Stable/-	687548748746
Senior Unsecured		A.	Y42356443958	
Fortis TCI Ltd.	是對於名物的			
Issuer Credit Rating		ping.	/Stable/-	300 ye 34 34 54 5
Maritime Electric Co. Ltd.			Set Silvering Services	
Issuer Credit Rating	想到多个公司等	DOO	+/Stable/-	
也在大学·节日,自然的大学、Wind Target 的人。1995年,于20		757075	and 25 46	
Senior Secured	AND THE SECOND	的最初的特别,在为 A 以	的复数形式 经公司	2,630g (120 G

^{*}Unless otherwise noted, all ratings in this report are global scale ratings. Standard & Poor's credit ratings on the global scale are comparable across countries. Standard & Poor's credit ratings on a national scale are relative to obligors or obligations within that specific country. Issue and debt ratings could include debt guaranteed by another entity, and rated debt that an entity guarantees.

Copyright @ 2015 by Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC. All rights reserved.

No content (including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valuations, model, software, or other application or output therefrom) or any part thereof (Content) may be modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC or its affiliates (collectively, S&P). The Content shall not be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P and any third-party providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents (collectively) S&P Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions (regigent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use of the Content, or for the security or maintenance of any data input by the user. The Content is provided on an "as is" basis. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT'S RUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party for any direct, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive, special or consequential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by negligence) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

Credit-related and other analyses, including ratings, and statements in the Content are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and not statements of fact. S&P's opinions, analyses, and rating acknowledgment decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or self any securities or to make any investment decisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. S&P assumes no obligation to update the Content following publication in any form or formet. The Content should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment and other business decisions. S&P does not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor except where registered as such. While S&P has obtained information from sources it believes to be reliable, S&P does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification of any information it receives.

To the extent that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain regulatory purposes, S&P reserves the right to assign, withdraw, or suspend such acknowledgement at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever ensing out of the assignment, withdrawal, or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof.

S&P keeps certain activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective activities. As a result, certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established policies and precedures to maintain the confidentiality of certain nonpublic information received in connection with each analytical process.

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of securities or from obligors. S&P reserves the right to disseminate its opinions and analyses. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ptingsdirect.com and www.spcapitaliq.com (subscription), and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional Information about our ratings fees is available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees.